
 

 

 
 

Delegated Decisions by Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
Monday, 7 March 2016 at 11.00 am 
Room 3 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on 15 March 2016 unless called in by 
that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 
These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  Date of next meeting: 28 March 2016 
 
 
 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Peter G. Clark  
Head of Paid Service February 2016 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
 
Sue Whitehead 
Tel: (01865) 810262; E-Mail: sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  

2. Questions from County Councillors  
 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two 

working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one 
meeting is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary 
question at the meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in 
total. As with questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the 
end of this item will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and 
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such 
other councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not 
be the subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the 
despatch of the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of 
Addenda circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is 
available at that time. 
  

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

4. Sign Off for OFRS Participation in the Emergency Services Mobile 
Communication Programme (Pages 1 - 22) 

 Forward Plan Ref: 2016/022 
Contact: Simon Furlong, Assistant Chief Fire Officer Tel: (01865) 855206 
 
Report by Chief Fire Officer (CMDDL4). 
 
There is a requirement for central government and the three emergency services to 
go to the open market for the procurement of a communication system that enables 
Fire, Police and Ambulance to communicate at operational incidents and to share 
data in a safe and secure manner. A national programme led by the Home Office 
has developed a programme for the development and procurement of a new 
communication system which will be provided prior to the loss of the existing 
contract and airwave band in 2020. This report and the Annex 1 sets out the 
predicted costs for Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service and seeks a decision from 
the Deputy Leader to authorise the Chief Fire Officer to sign up to the programme 
on behalf of Oxfordshire County Council  Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council is RECOMMENDED to: 
 
 

(a) support the Chief Fire Officer’s decision to participate in the  
Emergency Services Mobile Communication Programme subject 
to: 



Page 3  
 

 

 
(1)all cutover criteria being met by the programme; 
(2)full breakdown of current and future charging mechanism being 
provided prior to transition; 
(3)clarity of contract provision based on a “like for like” basis; 
(4)costs not transferred to the FRS prior to sign-off of cutover criteria; 
 
(b)require the Chief Fire Officer to report to the Cabinet Member for Fire 
and Rescue should the above criteria (1-4) not be met.  

 

`  

 

 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): All 
 
 
DELEGATED DECISION BY THE DEPUTY LEADER – 7 MARCH 2016 
 
EMERGENCY SERVICES MOBILE COMMUNICATION PROGRAMME 

(ESMCP) SIGN OFF 
 

Report by the Chief Fire Officer 
 

Introduction 
 
1. As a result of the end of contracts for the current Airwave communication 

system between 2016 -2020, the Government has been developing an 
integrated communication system for the three Emergency Services in the 
United Kingdom. This has been Home Office led and Fire and Rescue 
Services have been represented through CFOA and DCLG. 
 

2. The programme has recently finalised the procurement of the new system 
(Emergency Services Network – ESN) which will be provided by two 
commercial companies (Motorola and E&E) and will utilise the Public Services 
Network via mobile network operators using 4G LTE for the transmission of 
voice and data traffic between emergency service resources. 
 

3. The contracts have now been awarded and DCLG are seeking sign up from 
individual Fire and Rescue Authorities that wish to engage with the 
programme. DCLG have provided indicative costs for each FRS based on 
predicted costs and mapped these against the current and potential future 
costs of the current system. 

 
Operational requirements  

 
4. The specification of the new system has been developed with full engagement 

of the UK Fire and Rescue Service and ensures that there will be no reduction 
in the system performance. 
 

5. The airwave network will not be available post 2020 when the existing 
contract ends and the radio bandwidth is no longer available. The only other 
options will be to procure a local communications system, which will not be 
interoperable with the other emergency services or for any deployment 
outside Oxfordshire. A local solution will not provide the security and primacy 
of use that the national programme will deliver. 

 
6. Each Fire and Rescue Service will be able to set its own cutover criteria so we 

would not transition to the new network until we are satisfied that the new 
system meets the operational requirements for  a communications system for 
Oxfordshire. 

 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



CMDDL4 

Significant Risks 
 
7.  Oxfordshire are third in the transition programme to cutover in Jan 18 and 

being this early in the programme means there is still significant work to start 
now to ensure readiness – DCLG will provide transition funding from April 
2016. 

 
8. The Technology is still in development and there is no working example of 

how the ESN will integrate with the mobilising system and the level of 
assurance that the market will be able to provide devices and vehicle 
installations -  The Home Office programme team are engaging with suppliers 
to ensure readiness , the risk sits at a central programme level as we will not 
commence transition until these issues are addressed. 
 

9. Coverage, the mobile network provider (E&E) have provided predicted 
coverage maps but these are only predicted and we will need to assure 
ourselves that the coverage is compliant with the user specification – We will 
work with TVP and SCAS as their need for local coverage is in excess of our 
user requirements. We will not be required to cutover until our cutover criteria 
have been met. These criteria will be set by the individual Fire and Rescue 
Services. 

 
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
10. DCLG will provide transition support funding to the South Central region and 

to OFRS. It is not certain whether this funding will be enough to support 
transition. We have not received the funding allocation for OFRS for the 
hardware refresh and the provision of the access to the ESN through an 
internet service provider. 
 

11. OFRS has allocated the reserve funds that were in place for the refresh of the 
airwave devices to the ESMCP programme. This prudent financial planning 
should ensure that any local financial risks are mitigated. 

 
12. The Sign – off pack only gives predicted costs and there are a number of 

assumptions that are included in these figures as the additional detail is not 
currently available. It does show that the switch to ESN will be cheaper than 
the existing net cost of the airwave system. 
 

13. There will be no grant for ESN from DCLG/ HO so any changes in the future 
cost of the steady state delivery will need to be met by the Authority. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
14. The Deputy Leader of the Council is RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) support the Chief Fire Officer’s decision to participate in the 
Emergency Services Mobile Communication Programme. Subject 
to: 
(1) all cutover criteria being met by the programme; 

Page 2



CMDDL4 

(2) full breakdown of current and future charging mechanism 
being provided prior to transition; 

(3) clarity of contract provision based on a “like for like” basis; 
(4) costs not transferred to the FRS prior to sign-off of cutover 

criteria; 
(b) require the Chief Fire Officer to report to the Cabinet Member for 

Fire and Rescue should the above criteria  (1-4) not be met. 
 
 
 
DAVID ETHERIDGE 
Chief Fire Officer 
 
Background papers:   ESMCP Sign Off pack 
 
Contact Officer: Simon Furlong :  Assistant Chief Fire Officer 
 
February 2016 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

1 
 

 
 
 
 

Emergency Services 
Mobile Communications 

Programme (ESMCP) 

 

Fire and Rescue 
Authorities Financial 

Information and Sign Off 
Pack 

 
Oxfordshire FRA 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 5



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

2 
 

 
CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

1.0 Introduction        3 
 
2.0 Assumptions        4 
 
3.0 ESMCP Background       4 
 
4.0 The Financial Rationale      6 
 
5.0 The Indicative Financial Figures for your FRA    9 
 
6.0 Issues with Alternatives to ESMCP    10 
 
7.0 FRA Required Response to DCLG     13 
 
8.0 Next Steps        13 
 
Annex A - Sign Off Emails for DCLG     14  
 

Annex B - Overview of Options for Replacement of   15 
Emergency Services Communications     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

3 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 The purpose of this pack is to provide Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRAs) with the 
information they require to make an informed decision about their participation in the 
Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme (ESMCP) which will deliver a 
new Emergency Services Network (ESN.) 
 

1.2 DCLG has committed to provide all reasonable transition funding for FRAs moving on to 
ESN. This process will begin with the mobilisation phase in spring 2016.  As such, before 
significant funding is provided to FRAs, DCLG requires Chief Fire Officers (or appropriate 
individuals) to provide them with a signed commitment that they would like to take up 
the new service (see Annex A.)    

 
1.3 The Pack provides summary information about the Programme rationale and its 

benefits for the fire service from both an operational and financial perspective.  In 
particular this pack: 

 
- Provides an explanation of the Programme’s transition and steady states and the 

financial implications involved 
- Provides an indication about the likely costs for your FRA of the ESN through its 

steady state up to 2032  
- Highlights where there may be scope for additional efficiencies by FRAs   
- Demonstrates that the potential alternatives to participation in ESMCP carry 

significant risks for FRAs both from a financial and operational perspective 
- Asks FRAs to provide the Department for Communities and Local Government 

(DCLG) with a decision about whether your FRA intends to participate in the ESMCP 
going forward. 

 
1.4 DCLG believes that the ESMCP provides the best solution for updating and enhancing 

the Fire Service’s emergency communications system.  From a financial perspective it is 
cheaper overall when compared to Firelink costs, saving the Fire Service some £80m up 
to 2032.  In addition the ESMCP allows Fire and Rescue Services (FRSs) to make further 
efficiencies by reconfiguring data and connections to suit their specific needs and by 
deciding on the scale and timing of device refresh.  Further savings are likely to be made 
in the future as the new ESN is linked to commercial providers and as such retenders 
will take place in a competitive environment rather via a monopoly provider (as is the 
case at the moment.)  Furthermore DCLG will support FRSs with the cost of transition, 
removing a potentially costly barrier.  From an operational perspective DCLG believes 
the new system will be more interoperable, resilient and will support data functions 
better than the current system.  It will also be better able to respond to innovations in 
the mobile communications market as it is linked to commercial providers.   

Page 7



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

4 
 

 

2.0 Assumptions 
 

2.1 This paper uses a number of assumptions to calculate the annual costs of ESN for your 
individual FRA.  It is important to stress that the figures within this pack are indicative.  
Whilst we believe that the figures in this pack provide a good representation of the 
likely costs involved, in reality the final figures for an FRA will depend on a range of local 
decisions (such as configuration of data and connections and device refresh.)   
 

2.2 The assumptions within this pack (such as the timeline for transition and the costs for 
Airwave) derive from the Programme’s Full Business Case.  If you would like to discuss 
these assumptions, please do not hesitate to contact the DCLG Policy Team at 
chris.hall@communities.gsi.gov.uk. 
 

2.3 The figures for devices, connections and vehicle installations and fit-outs have been 
derived from the As-Is2 survey which the Home Office collected in April 2014.  Whilst 
DCLG believes that this survey gives a good indication of costs, we understand that 
some changes are likely to occur (or have occurred) before mobilisation begins in 2016.  
The Programme will undertake a more up to date survey prior during spring 2016.   

 
 

3.0 ESMCP Background 
 

3.1 ESMCP is a cross-government programme to replace the existing mobile 
communications service for the three emergency services (Firelink for the FRS) with a 
new commercial system based on 4G. 
 

3.2 Overall the objectives of ESMCP are to be: 

• Better with integrated broadband data services; public service functionality; 
national coverage and high availability. 
 

• Smarter to be more flexible, to evolve and improve over time, pay only for features 
required by users. 

 
• Cheaper to address budget pressures, re-competed regularly to leverage market 

forces. 
 
3.3 There are three strategic drivers that are influencing the scope and timing of ESMCP’s 

development.  These are that: 
 

Page 8



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

5 
 

• Current contracts for the three services (provided by Airwave) expire between 2016 
and 2020 and cannot readily be extended.  As such there will be no Airwave Firelink 
service from 2020 meaning that now is a good time to procure an alternative 
system. 
 

• The current Airwave Firelink service is already significantly more expensive than 
similar public safety systems in Europe and price trends for publically available 
mobile telephony. 
 

• Users within the three emergency services are increasing requiring broadband data 
(not just voice communications) to support operational transformation.  This cannot 
be met by current Airwave technologies. 

 
3.4 The intended scope of ESMCP will include 44 police forces, 50 fire and rescue services 

(including those in Scotland and Wales) and 13 Ambulance Trusts.  A range of other civil 
contingency user organisations will also join ESMCP as second tier users. Overall this 
means that the system is likely to have approximately 300,000 users.  
 

3.5 FRS transition on to the new ESN is due to begin with the mobilisation phase in 2016 
and will be complete by January 2020 by which time all FRSs will be in a steady state. 
The steady state will last until the end of the financial year 2032 by which point a 
retendering of the contracts will have taken place.     
 

3.6 DCLG recognises that Fire communications systems continue to be the responsibility of 
each individual FRA.  However central government has a strong interest in ensuring that 
the country is fully prepared to deal with civil contingency issues.  As such the 
Government believes that it is important to have in place a communications system that 
enables inter-working across boundaries and between the three emergency services.  
Furthermore the Government believes it is important to ensure that emergency services 
communications are robust and resilient, using the latest technology to aid the delivery 
of a more effective service.   
 

3.7 As such, whilst DCLG is currently not mandating take up of ESMCP, it is strongly 
recommending that FRAs sign up to the system, both from a financial perspective (the 
fire service as a whole stands to make significant savings of approximately £80m) but 
also from an operational perspective. 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

6 
 

 

4.0 The Financial Rationale  
 

4.1 The delivery and realisation of the new Emergency Services Network via ESMCP will take 
place in two major stages.  These will be a transition stage whereby FRSs will prepare 
for and undertake the switch to ESN and the steady state stage whereby FRSs will be 
fully utilising the ESN.   
 

Transition Stage 

4.2 The table below provides an indicative timetable regarding how and when the 
mobilisation and transition process will operate. 
 

 
 

4.3 As with many significant change programmes, ESMCP will incur some significant 
transition costs as Fire Services move from one communications system to another.  In 
order to help achieve a smooth and effective transition, DCLG has made a commitment 
to support FRAs in the cost of transition.  Whilst we are not yet in a position to confirm 
funding on an individual basis, a total of £50.4m will be made available to FRAs to fund 
transition.   
 

4.4 Details regarding the individual costs of transition will be provided over the first two 
quarters of 2016.  However as DCLG requires a commitment from FRAs prior to 
providing transition funding, it was deemed prudent provide the indicative costs at the 
earliest opportunity. 
 

4.5 During their transition FRAs will continue to pay the costs of Firelink (and receive the 
associated New Burdens Grant) until the point at which they have completed transition 

Page 10



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

7 
 

and no longer require a connection to Airwave (except for interworking in instances of 
mutual aid.)  Once an FRS has completed its transition it will then begin paying for the 
ESN service, benefitting from the greater functionality this provides, and in most cases, 
a lower cost.  It is therefore in an FRA’s interest to facilitate a timely completion of 
transition in order to benefit from reduced costs of ESN.  There will be no period when 
an FRA will be paying for both Airwave and ESN. 
 

4.6 DCLG will provide funding for: 
 

4.7 Local Transition Support – DCLG has previously agreed with Fire Customer Group the 
funding for Local Transition Support.  This includes roles such as local project managers, 
control room managers and training.  We would encourage local collaboration within 
transition regions and would welcome a lead authority model.  Grant Payment would be 
made on an annual basis by Section 31. 
 

4.8 Control Rooms and PSN – Due to the degree of variation in Control Room solutions, as 
part of the future control room scheme, and therefore the path for upgrade required 
for ESMCP, it is appreciated that there is not likely to be any simple, one size fits all 
calculation for splitting transition grant.  As such, it is our intention to request bids for 
control room upgrades, based on quotes received following engagement with suppliers, 
in the new year with a view to agree funding at the appropriate stage.  FRAs and Control 
Room Partnerships would be expected to make reasonable bids, with a focus on 
completing all control room upgrades required to deliver ESN functionality by 
commencement of transition. 

 
4.9 Vehicle Installations – DCLG and the Programme have made an estimate on the 

anticipated cost for Vehicle Installations.  We would propose to fund FRAs 
(proportionately) on the basis of the number of Fire Appliances.  FRAs who intend to 
collaborate on vehicle installations will then have the flexibility to combine pots or 
appoint a lead authority. 

 
4.10 Devices – DCLG has committed to fund ESMCP devices, however we also want to 

encourage flexibility for local decision making within Fire and Rescue Authorities.  As 
such we would seek to provide funds to FRAs for the replacement of existing devices, 
based on the Programme’s calculations. Local FRAs would have the flexibility to 
purchase from the Device Catalogue at the cost level and in volumes they wish.  DCLG 
will only be providing funding for devices during the transition stage.  Individual FRAs 
will have the flexibility to determine their own device refresh in steady state (although 
the indicative costs provided in this paper include a full refresh taking place over a 
five/six year period.)     

 

Page 11



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

8 
 

4.11 Regional Implementation Managers – In addition to the above funding for Local 
Transition Support the Department will be funding a Regional Implementation Manager 
for each of the 10 Regions in England.  They will be required to coordinate the transition 
of FRS and they will be responsible for monitoring and ensuring the core elements of 
the programme are delivered locally, but not the Non-Core (Vehicle Fit outs, Devices, 
Control Room upgrades).   
 

4.12 Over the next few months DCLG will put in place a process for receiving bids for 
Control Room and PSN upgrades, with a view to begin receiving bids in 2016.  For the 
other elements of Transition Funding we would intend to work with the Programme and 
Delivery Partner to confirm how many vehicle fit-outs and replacement devices (either 
Handheld or Vehicle) are required.   

Steady State Stage 

4.13 Overall the Programme estimates that ESN will produce at least an £80m saving to 
English Fire and Rescue Authorities nationally between 2020 and 2032. This indicates a 
strong value for money case for ESN. Furthermore the vast majority of FRAs will make a 
saving on the costs they were paying for the Airwave system. As such, DCLG believes 
that this saving combined with the support for transition costs makes a compelling case 
for FRA sign up.  
 

4.14 However, there are a few FRAs (usually those authorities that have enjoyed 
generous subsidies for Airwave) who will see their individual costs rise.  In most of these 
cases, FRAs will only see a small rise, however for a few it may be more significant.   
 

4.15 There is however scope within the programme for an FRA to make efficiencies which 
will reduce their individual bill – meeting a long term wish of FRSs which have had fixed-
price bills under Firelink.  Non-Core costs (i.e. those for connections and data usage) are 
locally driven.  In other words, an FRA will only pay for what they use.  As such there 
may be scope to make savings on data and connection charges by reconfiguring devices 
to suit the specific needs of a particular fire service.  Furthermore, the scale and timing 
of any device refresh will be up to individual services (the model at 5.0 provides for a 
full refresh of devices in the steady state, the cost of which would fall to the FRS.) 
 

4.16 In order to help those FRAs that will see their individual costs rise, an element of 
tapering has been included within the modelling/indicative costs for the Core element 
on a declining basis (75%, 50%, 25%) for the first 3 years of ESN.  This will mean that 
those FRAs affected by higher costs will not see a sudden rise but rather a gradual 
increase.     

 

Page 12



CMDDL4 
OFFICIAL 

9 
 

5.0 The Indicative Financial Figures for your FRA  

 

Indicative ESN Costs to Oxfordshire FRA 

 

Indicative Airwave Costs to Oxfordshire FRA over same period – [Please note Airwave cannot continue post Dec-2020 at the latest] 

 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29 29/30 30/31 31/32 

 
Airwave 

 
£21,355 

 
£65,347 

 
£87,494 

 
£89,244 

 
£91,029 
 

 
£92,850 
 

 
£94,707 
 

 
£96,601 
 

 
£98,533 
 

 
£100,503 
 

 
£102,513 
 

 
£104,564 
 

 
£106,655 
 

 
£108,788 
 

 

Indicative Net Saving/Cost to Oxfordshire FRA 

 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29 29/30 30/31 31/32 

Net 
Saving 
/ 
Cost of 
ESN 

                 
£(2,868) 
 

        
£(7,458) 
 

       
£(28,775) 

      
£(30,393) 
 

             
£(22,305) 
 

 
£(14,713) 
 

 
£(22,599) 
 

                
£9,855 
 

               
£236 
 

              
£(17,917) 
 

             
£(16,716) 
 

 
£(26,403) 
 

              
£(28,358) 
 

             
£(30,009) 

 

 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29 29/30 30/31 31/32 
Core £14,175 £44,791 £45,683 £46,881 £52,708 £56,762 £57,934 £59,269 £60,631 £62,021 £63,440 £64,888 £66,366 £66,848 

Data £4,312 £13,098 £13,036 £11,970 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 £11,931 

Devices £- £- £- £- £4,085 £9,443 £2,242 £35,256 £26,207 £8,635 £10,426 £1,342 £- £- 

Total £18,487 £57,889 £58,720 £58,851 £68,724 £78,137 £72,108 £106,456 £98,769 £82,587 £85,797 £78,161 £78,297 £78,779 

P
age 13



OFFICIAL 
 

10 
 

6.0 Issues with Alternatives to ESMCP 
 

6.1 Whilst DCLG is currently not mandating the take up of ESMCP, it is strongly 
recommending that FRAs sign up to the system both from a financial and operational 
perspective.   
 

6.2 The Government considered a range of options for updating emergency service 
communications as part of the Outline Business Case for ESMCP (these are summarised 
at Annex B.)   The result of this options analysis was that ESMCP (an enhanced 
commercial Long-Term Evolution network) provided a compelling case going forward.  
ESMCP will provide a system that is: 

 

• Robust, interoperable and contains data capabilities  

• Smart in that it only charges only for what is used  

• Cheaper overall than the existing system  

• Contains scope for future efficiencies as it is linked to a commercial 
system.    

 
6.3 In deciding whether to go ahead with ESMCP, FRAs will need to be aware that 

maintaining the status quo Airwave system will not be an option.  Airwave is due to 
come to an end in 2019 (with scope for a further one year contractual extension until 31 
December 2020)  As such a change in communication system will need to take place 
regardless of whether an FRA decides to sign up to ESMCP or not.  

 
6.4 Furthermore it will be important in making a decision about ESMCP that FRAs which 

have a formal relationship with other FRAs (such as the sharing of a Control Room) 
ensure that they have regard to what their partner organisations intentions are and the 
potential impact that this might have on future working relationships.  

 
6.5 DCLG believes that ESMCP offers the best communications system going forward.  As 

such DCLG will only contribute to transition costs for FRAs moving onto ESMCP as a Tier 
1 user.  It will not provide any support to FRAs wishing to choose alternative methods of 
communications.  
 

6.6 The table below highlights a variety of alternatives to ESMCP and an explanation 
regarding why the Government believes they are not viable when compared to the 
benefits that ESCMP will bring. 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



OFFICIAL 
 

11 
 

 

Option 
 

Potential Issues 
 

Do Nothing 
(Continuation of 

Airwave) 

 
• DCLG’s current contract with Airwave runs out at the end of 

2019 (with a possible extension to end of 2020) 
• As such the Fire Service will need to re-procure a 

communications service whether or not they are part of 
ESMCP.   

• Even if we could continue with Airwave, we would have to incur 
the higher costs associated with a monopoly provider.   

• In addition the Airwave system is becoming increasingly 
outdated – as it is based on voice rather than data 
communications which are increasingly used by Fire Services. 
 

Procure own 4G 
Network for your FRA 

 
• Likely to be more expensive than joining ESMCP which 

provides a 4G network and has gained cost efficiencies by  
negotiating on behalf of a wide range of users. 

• If provided by an organisation that is different to the 
ESMCP provider, the network is unlikely to be 
interoperable with other ESMCP users 

• The FRA would be responsible for its own procurement 
and delivery.  This risks not having completed the 
transition to a new system by the time Airwave Firelink 
contacts end in 2019 or 2020 
 

 
Become a Tier 2 User 

within the 
Programme* 

 
 

 
• Likely to be more expensive for the FRA over the long 

term as connection and costs will be higher for Tier 2 
users. 

• There will be no DCLG financial support available for 
undertaking this option 

• Will have no influence over Control Rooms going forward 
• Will need to assess the impact of the relationship with 

other FRAs with whom they have a formal relationship. 
 

Procure your own 
Radio (Tetra) System 
or Revert to Existing 

Legacy System 

 
• There is no guarantee that the procurement and delivery 

of a new system will be cheaper for an FRA than ESMCP 
participation 

• These systems will not be interoperable with other fire 
services or organisations other using the Emergency 
Service Network (ESN) 

• There may be resilience issues if coverage is not as good 

Page 15



OFFICIAL 
 

12 
 

as the new ESN (which will be at least as good as Airwave) 
• There will be no financial support from DCLG either for 

transition or steady state 
• Broadband provision will be included.  This is increasingly 

being used for fire services and so an alternative solution 
will need to be found. 

• This system will not be future proofed to take advantage 
of a developing commercial 4G market. 

• The impact on formal Relationships with other FRAs that 
are using ESN will need to be addressed.   

 
 

* Apart from the 3ES, there are a significant number of government and other public safety 
users totalling over 300 organisations all with individual ASL contracts, known as sharers.  
Under the current ESMCP model these organisations will be known as Tier 2 organisations. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 16



OFFICIAL 
 

13 
 

7.0 FRA Required Response to DCLG 
 

7.1 DCLG will require a formal response from each FRA’s Chief Fire Officer regarding 
whether or not they intend to migrate onto the new Emergency Services Network as 
part of the ESMCP.  This will allow DCLG to have the assurance it needs to be able to 
distribute the required funding for transition in line with the Programme timescales.   
 

7.2 A draft confirmation letter to be signed and returned to DCLG is attached at Annex A.  
In order to ensure that payments are made promptly we would ask that DCLG receive 
this letter no later than Friday 25th March 2016.    
 

8.0 Next Steps 
 

8.1 Between January and March 2016 members of the ESMCP Policy Team within DCLG 
shall arrange a number of meetings with FRAs around the country to discuss their 
particular ESMCP figures.  If you feel that your FRA would benefit from such a 
conversation or if you have any specific quires about this pack or the sign off procedure, 
please contact Chris Hall at chris.hall@communities.gsi.gov.uk.  
 

8.2 As noted at paragraph 7.2, DCLG require the signed response letter by Friday 25th March 
2016. 

 
8.3 Following FRA sign up to ESMCP, DCLG will make the appropriate funding payments via 

a Section 31 grant (subject to legal/financial approvals), in time for the transition 
arrangements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 17



OFFICIAL 
 

14 
 

 

Annex A – Sign Off Emails for DCLG 
 

• DCLG has committed to provide all reasonable transition funding for FRAs moving on to 
ESN.  This will begin with the mobilisation phase in spring 2016.  As such, before 
significant funding is provided, DCLG requires Chief Fire Officers (or appropriate 
individuals) to provide them with a commitment that they would like to take up the new 
service. 
 

• If your FRA would like to proceed with ESMCP we would be grateful if your Chief Fire 
Officer (or appropriate person) could sign, scan and email the statement below to 
DCLG’s Policy Official at chris.hall@communities.gsi.gov.uk by 25th March 2016.  

 

• Alternatively if your FRA does not wish to sign up to the new network, we would be 
grateful if you could sign, scan and email the alternative statement below to DCLG at the 
same email address. 

 
 
Confirmation of Transition to the Emergency Services Network 
 
I can confirm that Oxfordshire FRA will transition on to the new Emergency Services 
Network via the Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme (ESMCP).  I 
understand that the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) will 
provide all reasonable transition funding for the Programme between 2016 and 2019.   
 
 
Signed ……………………………..    Date………………………….. 
           Chief Fire Officer - Oxfordshire FRA 
 
 
 
Rejection of the Emergency Services Network 
 
I can confirm that Oxfordshire FRA will not transition on to the new Emergency Services 
Network via the Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme (ESMCP).   
 
 
Signed ……………………………..    Date………………………….. 
           Chief Fire Officer - Oxfordshire FRA 
  

Page 18



OFFICIAL 
 

15 
 

Annex B - Overview of Options for Replacement of  
Emergency Services Communications. 

 

 

Economic Option Description 

Option1 – Do Nothing 

 
Existing Airwave contracts naturally expire. No central 
involvement in procurement of replacement services. 
 

Option 2– Continue with a 
TETRA network 
(Do minimum) 

 
Procure a private TETRA network with public safety voice 
and narrow-band data augmented by locally-procured 
operational broadband data services. This requires 
400MHz spectrum which is not available until 2020 
 

Option 3 –Build a new private 
LTE network 

 
Procure a private LTE network with public safety voice 
and broadband data services. This requires 700MHz 
spectrum which is unlikely to be available until 2020 
 

Option 4 – Enhanced 
Commercial LTE Service* 

 
Transition to a commercial LTE network when Airwave 
contracts expire. Additional procurement of necessary 
public safety features to enhance the network 
 

 

*From the ESMCP Outline Business Case – “The cost benefit analysis concludes that Option 4 
is the preferred option on the basis that it represents the highest Net Present Value. Option 
4 also provides the most non-financial benefits and critically delivers the non-financial 
benefits of interoperability required to meet the Programme’s objectives” 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



CMDDL4 
 

                        

Mr C Hall 
Department of Communities and Local 
Government 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dear  
 
Re: ESMCP Sign Off from Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 

Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (OFRS) have signed to confirm that we will transition to 
the new Emergency Services Network via the Emergency Services Mobile Communication 
Programme (ESMCP).  This is subject to the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) providing all reasonable transition funding for the Programme between 
2016 and 2019. 
 
Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service would also like to qualify that this is subject to: 
 
1. Full compliance with the transition criteria that is determined by OFRS, which is based on 
the user specification for ESMCP. 

2. Provision of a full breakdown of the costing schedule for additional user requirements for 
the period of the contract, e.g. additional data requirements or additional devices. 

3. The provision of a detailed breakdown of what the programme is providing on a fully 
funded “like for like” basis. 

4. There is no transfer of costs associated with ESN or ESMCP prior to the completion of full 
cutover and agreement that all cutover criteria have been achieved. 

We are fully supportive of the aims of the project to provide a better, smarter and cheaper 
mobile communications service for the three emergency services.  However, in this period of 
financial challenge it would be incorrect of us not to ensure that the decisions we make are 
based on sound financial and operational information.  
 

We understand that the full business case is built on predicted costs in a number of areas and 
therefore we would also request that our Fire Authority is provided with updated financial 
information as soon as it is made available to the programme, to ensure that it is still providing 
best value to our organisation and the communities we serve. 

 

 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
Councillor Rodney Rose    
Deputy Leader of Oxfordshire County Council  
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/fire 

Oxfordshire County Council 
Fire and Rescue Service 
Headquarters 
Sterling Road 
Kidlington 
Oxfordshire OX5 2DU 
 
David Etheridge 
Chief Fire Officer  

Date: 18 February 2016 
Our ref: SF/ER 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Sign Off for OFRS Participation in the Emergency Services Mobile Communication Programme
	CMDDL_MAR0716R02
	CMDDL_MAR0716R03


